

**APPLE VALLEY
ORDINANCE O-2022-36**

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the Apple Valley, in the State of Utah, as follows:

SECTION 1: **AMENDMENT** “10.28.270 Guesthouses Or Casitas” of the Apple Valley Land Use is hereby *amended* as follows:

BEFORE AMENDMENT

10.28.270 Guesthouses Or Casitas

The purpose and intent of requirements for allowing detached guesthouses or casitas is to provide additional housing opportunity for family members and visiting guests of the owners of the primary dwelling.

- A. Authorized: Guesthouses or casitas may be authorized, provided all requirements of this title, all other land use ordinances and the building code are met.
- B. Maximum Number: A maximum of one guesthouse or casita may be established on each individual, separate legal lot, such lot meeting all requirements, including minimum lot size, for the zoning district in which the lot is located.
- C. Permanent Structure: A guesthouse or casita shall be a permanent structure on the lot. No mobile homes, travel trailers, boats or similar recreational vehicles shall be used as a guesthouse or casita.
- D. Single-Family Dwelling; Lot: The lot proposed for a guesthouse or casita shall have an existing single-family dwelling unit established, or approved, prior to the consideration of the use application to allow a guesthouse or casita.
- E. Square Footage: The square footage of a guesthouse or casita shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the footprint of the primary dwelling, excluding the garage, or eight hundred (800) square feet, whichever is smaller. The minimum size of a guesthouse or casita shall be three hundred (300) square feet.
- F. Setbacks: All guesthouses or casitas shall meet and comply with the minimum setbacks required for the primary dwelling by the zoning district in which they are located, except the rear setback may be reduced to match the side setbacks.
- G. Parking: All guesthouses or casitas shall provide a minimum of one off street parking space.
- H. Construction: The construction of all guesthouses or casitas shall meet all requirements of the adopted building code.
- I. Style, Materials, Colors: The architectural style, building materials and colors of all guesthouses or casitas shall be found to be compatible and consistent with the architectural style, materials and color of the primary dwelling unit.
- J. Height and Size Restrictions: All guesthouses or casitas shall be limited to one story,

with a maximum height of fifteen feet (15') for a pitched roof and thirteen feet (13') for a flat roof, but in no event exceeding the height of the existing dwelling. The city council may approve a special exception to the height and size restrictions for guesthouses and casitas.

- K. Occupancy Without Compensation: Guesthouses or casitas shall only be provided for the occupancy of family members of the owner of the primary dwelling, or guests of the owner, without compensation.
- L. Owner May Occupy: The owner, renter or lessee of the primary dwelling may live in the guesthouse or casita, but the primary dwelling shall only be occupied by the family members or guests of the owner, renter or lessee of the primary dwelling, without compensation.
- M. Deed Restriction: As a condition of approval required to establish a guesthouse or casita, the property owner shall record against the deed of the subject property, a deed restriction, in a form approved by the city, running in favor of the city, which shall prohibit the rental, lease or sale of the guesthouse or casita separately from the rental, lease or sale of the primary dwelling unit. Proof that such deed restriction has been recorded shall be provided to the zoning administrator prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the guesthouse or casita.
- N. Permits Required:
 - 1. The use application approval for a guesthouse or casita shall be received before a building permit is issued.
 - 2. The commission is authorized to approve an application for a guesthouse or casita that is not part of the original construction of the single-family dwelling unit to which it is associated, provided all requirements of this section, and all other applicable requirements of all land use ordinances, and all other regulations are met.
- O. Legalizing Existing Guesthouses and Casitas: Owners of guesthouses or casitas existing on the effective date hereof, and that have not been approved as required herein, shall apply for an approval within one hundred eighty (180) days of the effective date hereof. Illegal guesthouses or casitas existing after that date will subject the owners to all applicable enforcement actions that may be available to the city.

AFTER AMENDMENT

10.28.270 Guesthouses Or Casitas

The purpose and intent of requirements for allowing detached guesthouses or casitas is to provide additional housing opportunity for family members and visiting guests of the owners of the primary dwelling.

- A. Permits Required: The use application approval for a guesthouse, or or casita, shall be received before a building permit is issued. The commission is authorized to approve an application for a guesthouse, or or casita, that is not part of the original construction of the single-family dwelling unit to which it is associated, provided all requirements of this section, and all other applicable requirements of all land use ordinances, and all other regulations are met.

- B. Authorized: Guesthouses or casitas may be authorized, provided all requirements of this title, all other land use ordinances and the building code are met.
- C. Maximum Number: A maximum of one guesthouse, ~~or~~ or casita, may be ~~established~~ permitted on each individual, separate legal lot, such lot meeting all requirements, including minimum lot size, for the zoning district in which the lot is located.
- D. Permanent Structure: A guesthouse or casita shall be a permanent structure on the lot. No mobile homes, ~~travel trailers,~~ travel trailers, boats, or similar recreational vehicles ~~or similar recreational vehicles~~ shall be used as a guesthouse or casita.
- E. Single-Family Dwelling; Lot: The lot proposed for a guesthouse, ~~or~~ or casita, shall have an existing single-family dwelling unit established, or approved, prior to the consideration of the use application to allow a guesthouse or casita.
- F. Square Footage: The square footage of a guesthouse or casita shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the footprint of the primary dwelling, excluding the garage, or eight hundred (800) square feet, whichever is smaller. The minimum size of a guesthouse or casita shall be three hundred (300) square feet.
- G. Setbacks: All guesthouses, ~~or~~ or casitas, shall meet and comply with the minimum setbacks required for the primary dwelling by the zoning district in which they are located, except the rear setback may be reduced to match the side setbacks.
- H. Parking: All guesthouses, ~~or~~ or casitas, shall provide a minimum of one extra off street parking space.
- I. Construction: The construction of all guesthouses or casitas shall meet all requirements of the adopted building code.
- J. Style, Materials, Colors: The architectural style, building materials and colors of all guesthouses or casitas shall be found to be compatible and consistent with the architectural style, materials and color of the primary dwelling unit.
- K. Height and Size Restrictions: All guesthouses or casitas shall ~~be limited to one story, with a maximum height of fifteen feet (15') for a pitched roof and thirteen feet (13') for a flat roof, but in no event~~ not exceeding the height of the existing dwelling. The ~~city~~ town council may approve a special exception to the height and size restrictions for guesthouses and casitas.
- L. Occupancy With or Without Compensation: Guesthouses ~~or~~ or casitas, ~~shall~~ may only be provided for the occupancy of family members of the owner of the primary dwelling, or others ~~guests of the owner,~~ with or without compensation.
- M. Owner May Occupy: The owner, renter or lessee of the primary dwelling ~~may~~ shall live in the main house, guesthouse or casita, ~~but the primary dwelling shall only be occupied by the family members or guests of the owner, renter or lessee of the primary dwelling, without compensation.~~
- ~~N. Deed Restriction: As a condition of approval required to establish a guesthouse or casita, the property owner shall record against the deed of the subject property, a deed restriction, in a form approved by the city, running in favor of the city, which shall prohibit the rental, lease or sale of the guesthouse or casita separately from the rental, lease or sale of the primary dwelling unit. Proof that such deed restriction has been recorded shall be provided to the zoning administrator prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the guesthouse or casita.~~
- ~~O. Permits Required:~~

~~The use application approval for a guesthouse or casita shall be received before a building permit is issued. The commission is authorized to approve an application for a guesthouse or casita that is not part of the original construction of the single-family dwelling unit to which it is associated, provided all requirements of this section, and all other applicable requirements of all land use ordinances, and all other regulations are met.~~

~~P. Legalizing Existing Guesthouses and Casitas: Owners of guesthouses or casitas existing on the effective date hereof, and that have not been approved as required herein, shall apply for an approval within one hundred eighty (180) days of the effective date hereof. Illegal guesthouses or casitas existing after that date will subject the owners to all applicable enforcement actions that may be available to the city.~~

SECTION 2: REPEALER CLAUSE All ordinances or resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3: SEVERABILITY CLAUSE Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinances a whole or any part thereof other than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately after the required approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE APPLE VALLEY COUNCIL

_____.

	AYE	NAY	ABSENT	ABSTAIN
Mayor Frank Lindhardt	_____	_____	_____	_____
Council Member Andy McGinnis	_____	_____	_____	_____
Council Member Barratt Nielson	_____	_____	_____	_____
Council Member Kevin Sair	_____	_____	_____	_____
Council Member Robin Whitmore	_____	_____	_____	_____

Attest

Presiding Officer

Jenna Vizcardo, Town Clerk, Apple Valley

Frank Lindhardt, Mayor,, Apple Valley